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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 40th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Capricorn
Systems Global Solutions Limited will be held on Wednesday, December 31, 2025 at 10.30 AM IST
through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.  Toreceive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2025, including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended on that date, the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended and the Reports of the
Board of Directors (‘the Board’) and Auditors thereon and in this regard to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“‘RESOLVED THAT the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2025 together with the reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon be and are hereby received,
considered, approved and adopted.”

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 08.12.2025

By order of the Board
For Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited

Sd/-

S. Man Mohan Rao
Managing Director
DIN : 00109433

Registered Office:

# 1-120/B/28, Plot No. 28, Siri Enclave Colony, Nizampet,

Opp. Vignan School Back Gate, Bachupally, Hyderabad - 500090
Email id: complianceofficer@capricornsys-global.com

CIN: L52510TG1985PLC043347
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NOTES:

1.

In view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general meetings of the companies
shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide
Circular No. 14/2020 dt. 8.4.2020, 17/2020 dt. 13.4.2020, 20/2020 dt. 5.5.2020, 28/2020 dt. 17.8.2020,
02/2021 dt. 13.1.2021, 19/2021 dt. 8.12.2021, 21/2021 dt. 14.12.2021, 02/2022 dt. 5.5.2022, 10/
2022 dated 28.12.2022, 09/2023 dated 25.09.2023, 09/2024 dated 19.09.2024 and 03/2025 dated
22.09.2025 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) (“MCA Circulars”) and SEBI Circular
no(s). SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dt. 13.05.2022, SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dt.
5.1.2023, SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dt. 07.10.2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/P/ CIR/2024/133 dt. 03.10.2024, the forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video conferencing
(VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing
AGM through VC/OAVM. The Annual General Meeting of the Company is being held pursuant to the
extension of time duly granted by the Registrar of Companies vide approval dated 09.09.2025.”
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars,
the Company is providing facility of remote evoting to its Members in respect of the business to be
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well
as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and not after 15 minutes
of the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in
the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to
atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the
AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circulars, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is
not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies
Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State
or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

In line with the MCA Circulars, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the
Company at http://capricornsys-global.com/ The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of
the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated
on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during
the AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circulars.

Route map is not annexed to this meeting, Since, the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI LODR Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 1st April 2020, except in the case of request
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of the this and to eliminate all risks
associated with the physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares
in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings in dematerialized form.

To support the “Green initiative”, members who have not yet registered their email addresses are
requested to register the same with their DP’s in case the share are held by them in electronic form
and with the Company/RTA if the share are held by them in physical form.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their Name, Postal Address, E-mail
address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, Mandates, Nominations, PoA, Bank Details such as
name of the bank, branch details, bank account number, MICR Code, IFSC Code etc to their DP’s in
case the shares are held by them in electronic form and to the company if the shares are held in
physical form.

Members holding shares in demat mode, who have not registered their e-mail addresses are requested
to register their e-mail addresses with their respective DP and members holding shares in physical
mode are requested to update their e-mail addresses with the Company/RTA, to receive the Company’s
communication through email. Members may submit the forms detailed below, for registration of e-
mail address, updation of bank account details, nomination etc.

(a) For Shareholders holding shares in physical form:

(i) Form to register / change / update PAN, bank details, signature, e-mail address, mobile no. and
address: Form ISR-1

(i) Form for confirmation of signature: Form ISR-2

(iii) Form for nomination: Form SH-13

(iv) Form for declaration to opt-out of nomination: Form ISR-3

(v) Form for cancellation or variation of nomination: Form SH-14

(vi) Form for requesting issue of duplicate certificate and other service requests for shares, held in
physical form: Form ISR-4

(b) For Shareholders holding shares in demat form: Please contact your DP to register / update your
email address, bank account details, address, etc. in your demat account, as per the process advised
by your DP.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested,
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and the relevant documents referred to in the Notice will be
available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. All documents referred to in
the Notice will also be available electronically for inspection without any fee by the members from the
date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM on all working days between 10:00 a.m. IST to
01:00 p.m. IST. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to
complianceofficer@capricornsys-global.com

The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. S. Srikanth, Partner (M.No.A22119), representing M/s. B
S S & Associates, Company Secretaries, Hyderabad as the scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting during
the Remote E-Voting and Video Conferencing Voting in a fair and transparent manner.

The Company has engaged the services of CDSL as the Agency to provide e-voting facility.

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:
(i) The voting period begins on Sunday, December 28, 2025 at 9.00 A.M. (IST) and ends on Tuesday,
December 30, 2025 at 5.00 P.M. (IST). During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding
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(if)
(iii)
(iv)
v)

(i)

shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of
Wednesday, December 24, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at
the meeting venue.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on “Shareholders” module.

Now enter your User ID a. For CDSL.: 16 digits beneficiary ID, b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digits Client ID, c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter
Folio Number registered with the Company. OR Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL'’s
EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi
using your login credentials. Once you successfully log-in to CDSL's EASI/EASIEST e-services,
click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote electronically.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on

an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
- Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the
8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.
Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded
Bank in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Details or
Date of Birth | - If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please
(DOB) enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as
mentioned in instruction (v).

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

x)

(xi)

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant on which you choose to vote.
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17.

18.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click
on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii)You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting
page.

(xviii)If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app
can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the
mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS

UNDER:

(i) Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the
CDSL eVoting system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com
under shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/
OAVM will be available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be
displayed.

(if) Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

(iii) Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

(iv) Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

(v) Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance by 6.30 PM of 26.12.2025 mentioning
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
complianceofficer@capricornsys-global.com The shareholders who do not wish to speak during
the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance within aforementioned time mentioning
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
complianceofficer@capricornsys-global.com. These queries will be replied to by the company
suitably by email.

(vi) Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express
their views/ask questions during the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

(i) The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above
for Remote e-voting.

(i) Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.
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(iii) If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the
same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the
votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the
meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

(iv) Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

19. Note for Non-Individual Shareholders and Custodians

(i) Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRlI etc.) and Custodians are required

to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

(i) A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(i) After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password.
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

(iv) The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

(v) Ascanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same.

(vi) Alternatively, Non-Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; cs@bssandassociates.com &
complianceoffier@capricomnsys-global.com if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in
the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting System, you may
refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com,
under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-
23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542). All grievances
connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager,
(CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

By Order of the Board
For Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Ltd

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad S. MANMOHAN RAO
Date: 08-12-2025 Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00109433
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT

To,
The Members,
CAPRICORN SYSTEMS GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 40th (Fortieth) Annual Report of your Company together with
the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 and the report of the Auditors thereon.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The summarized results of your Company are given in the table below:
(Figures in Hundreds)

Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Revenue from Operations 1,00,809.57 82,970.65
Total Income 1,00,809.57 82,970.65
Employee Benefit Expense 80,730.66 72,756.96
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 24522 80.75
Other Expenses 1,10,644.86 26,011.79
Total Expenditure 1,91,620.74 98,849.50
Profit from operations before other income (90,811.17) (15,878.85)
Other Income - 912.91
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (90,811.17) (14,965.94)
Less : Tax Expense 270.01 (245.50)
Profit / (Loss) for the year after Tax (91,081.18) (14,720.44)
Add : Other Comprehensive Income (31.22) (380.50)
Total Comprehensive Income (91,112.40) (15,100.94)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

Turnover for the year ended 31st March, 2025 was 1,00,809.57 (in hundreds) as against 82,970.65 (in
hundreds) in the previous year. The Company registered a Loss of 91,112.40 (in hundreds) as against loss
of 15,100.94 (in hundreds) in the previous year. The operations of the company are impacted by slowdown
in the business from the existing customers during the year.

MATERIAL CHANGES:
The Board anticipates that the current market environment will continue and is of the view that the
diversification of business operations will not adversely impact the financial position of the Company.

DETAILS OF REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT OR THE REPORT:
There is no revision of financial statement or the Report.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT:

The company is engaged in the business of software development, providing software development and
consultancy services in the fields of software and allied services. The industry is expected to grow at the
moderate rate compared to the earlier period; however, the company is facing challenges in maintaining its
operations.

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES:
The Company’s Equity shares are presently listed on BSE Limited and the Company has paid the Annual
Listing Fees to the said Stock Exchanges for the financial year 2024-2025.
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SOP FINES BY BSE:

As per Regulations 33, 31, 27(2), 6(1), 29(2), 29(3) of SEBI, every listed entity shall submit the quarterly
and year-to-date standalone financial results to the stock exchange within 45 days from the end of each
quarter. The Company duly submitted the quarterly financial results within the prescribed time as stipulated
in the SEBI regulations. However, due to a change in the format, the financial results submitted by the
Company were not considered by the stock exchange, and it was treated as though the Company had not
submitted any financial results. Consequently, a penalty of Rs. 34,618.80 (in hundreds) was levied by
BSE, for the period from 2014-2022 which the Company has paid the entire fines by the end of July 2024.

DIVIDEND
Your directors did not recommend any dividend during the year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
There was no transfer to Reserves during the financial year under report as the company has incurred loss
during the year the same is adjusted against the opening balance of reserves.

STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:
During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has been engaged in the software business and actively
operating its business.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company remains unchanged during the financial year 2024-25.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

During the period under review, no such case was raised to credit / to pay any amount to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund. There is no outstanding amount lying in the Unpaid Dividend Account of
the Company in respect of the last 07 years and which is due for transfer to the IEPF.

CHANGE IN NAUTURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

During the financial year 2024-25, there has been no change in the business of the Company. However,
after the end of financial year 2024-25, the Company diversified its operations by initiating a new line of
business i.e. trading, supply, and distribution of both agricultural commaodities.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:
The Company does not have any subsidiaries or associate or joint venture companies. Hence the required
information under this head is not being attached to the report.

CREDIT RATING:
During the year under review, the Company has not obtained any Credit Rating as the same was not
applicable to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
The provisions of corporate governance under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”) are not applicable to the Company.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

All the Independent Directors have given declarations of Independence, as required pursuant to Section
149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of Independence as provided in sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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The Independent Directors also confirmed that they have complied with the Code for Independent Directors
prescribed in Schedule 1V to the Companies Act, 2013. There has been no change in the circumstances
affecting their status as an Independent Director during the year.

Independent Directors’ Meeting:

The Independent Directors met on 14.02.2025 without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and
members of the Management. The Independent Directors reviewed the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and the Board as a whole; the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account
the views of Executive Directors and Non—Executive Directors and assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary for
the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors duly met 8 times during the year viz 29.05.2024, 14.08.2024, 02.09.2024, 08.11.2024,
23.01.2025, 01.03.2025, 06.03.2025, 12.03.2025. The intervening gap between any two Board Meetings
was within the period prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. All the recommendations
given by the Audit Committee are accepted by the Board.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In terms of the provisions Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of Association of
the Company, Mr. Man Mohan Rao Suddhala, Director of the Company retire at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and are being eligible to offer himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

Based on the confirmations received from Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified from appointment
under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PROVISIONS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTRS

The performance of the Individual Directors on the Board and the Committees thereof is done by the Board
and the Independent Directors in their exclusive meeting done as per the policy formulated by the Board in
this regard.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the Independent Directors possess requisite qualifications,
experience and expertise in industry knowledge and corporate governance and they hold highest standards
of integrity. The Company proactively keeps its directors informed of the activities of the Company, its
management and operations and regularly update and refresh their skills, knowledge and familiarity with
the company.

BOARD EVALUATION:

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors have evaluated the
quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the management and the board,
performance of the Board as a whole and its Members and other required matters. The Board of Directors
have evaluated the performance of Independent Directors and observed the same to be satisfactory and
their deliberations beneficial in Board/Committee Meetings.

The Company had formulated a code of conduct for the Directors and Senior Management personnel and
the same has been complied.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
During the financial year 2024-25, the Company’s Board has the following Committees:
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(a) Audit Committee;
(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee; and
(c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

(a) Audit Committee

The Company has constituted the Audit Committee with power and role that are in accordance with
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee oversees the accounting, auditing and
overall financial reporting process of the Company. The Audit Committee acts as a link between the
Management, the Statutory Auditors and the Board of Directors to oversee the financial reporting process
of the Company.

Composition of Audit Committee

1. Mr. Kollu Venkata Srinivasa Rao -Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Ms. Gurram Lakshmi - Member (Independent Director)

3. Ms. Triveni Vuddaraju - Member (Independent Director)

The Audit Committee met five (5) times on (i) 29.05.2024, (i) 14.08.2024, (i) 08.11.2024, (iv) 23.01.2025
and (v) 12.03.2025.

The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee.

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been entrusted with role of formulating criteria for
determining the qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the Directors as well as for identifying
persons who may be appointed at senior management levels and also for devising a policy on remuneration
of Directors and other senior employees. The Committee has the power and role that are in accordance
with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board has adopted a policy for nomination, remuneration and other related matters for directors and senior
management personnel. Details of the policy are available on the company’s website www.capricornsys-
global.com.

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

1. Mr. Kollu Venkata Srinivasa Rao -Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Ms. Gurram Lakshmi - Member (Independent Director)

3. Ms. Triveni Vuddaraju - Member (Independent Director)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met two (2) times on (i) 29.05.2024 and (ii) 12.03.2025

(c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been entrusted with role to consider and resolve the grievances
of shareholders of the Company.

Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee
1. Mr. Kollu Venkata Srinivasa Rao -Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Ms. Gurram Lakshmi - Member (Independent Director)
3. Ms. Triveni Vuddaraju - Member (Independent Director)

No meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held during the financial year 2024-25.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL
The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
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and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(5) of the Act, and based on the representations received from
the management, the directors hereby confirm that:

i. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2024-25, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed and there are no material departures;

ii. selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the financial
year;

iii. and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act. They confirm that there are
adequate systems and controls for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v. laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and operating properly; and

vi. devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively

RISK AND RISK MITIGATION POLICY:

The operations of the company are dependent on the export to overseas markets the international economic
environment directly influences the spending patterns of the industry on the Information Technology. Also,
with the growing demand for the skilled manpower and ever-growing business environment poses risk of
availability of skilled man power. With the employee friendly policies the company pursued the employee
retention rate has been very high in the company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Your Company does not fall under any of the criteria specified under the provisions of Companies Act,
2013. Hence the Company has not constituted any committee and is not required to furnish information
required under the provisions of the said Act.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:
There have been no loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Act during the financial
year 2024-2025.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

There are no related party transactions during the year except that are entered in the ordinary course of
business and on arm’s length basis. There were no materially significant related party transactions between
your Company and the Directors, promoters, Key Managerial Personnel and other designated persons
which may have a potential conflict with the interest of company at large.

Form AOC 2 for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements, entered into by your company with
related parties is attached herewith as Annexure - I.
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TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ENERGY CONSERVATION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

Information in accordance with clause (m) of sub section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed herewith as Annexure - |I.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Particulars of employees pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) and Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March 2025 as Annexure - lII.

There are no employees in the company whose names are required to be furnished as per the information
and statement containing particulars of employees required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014.

The Nomination and remuneration committee of the Company has affirmed that the remuneration is as per
the Remuneration policy of the Company.

Your directors take this opportunity to record their deep appreciation of the continuous support and
contribution from all employees of the Company.

ANNUAL RETURN:
As required under Sub-Section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 a copy of Annual Return in
Form MGT-7 is available at the website of the Company, www.capricornsys-global.com.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR:

There were no frauds as reported by the Statutory Auditors under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 along with Rules made there-under other than those which are reportable to the
Central Government.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to provide Vigil Mechanism for directors and employees
of the Company to report genuine concerns. The provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions of
the Section 177(9) of the Act and rules made thereunder.

REMUNERATION RECEIVED BY MANAGING/WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR FROM HOLDING OR
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:
The Company does not have any holding company or subsidiary company.

DEPOSITS:
During the year under review your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits and, as such, no amount
of principal or interest was outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date.
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AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT:

M/s. SNMR & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad was appointed as Auditors of the Company
for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years at 37th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2022.
They have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as auditors of the company. The Auditors
Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remark or disclaimer.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has appointed M/s
Aakash Agarwal, Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial
year 2024-2025. The Secretarial Audit report is annexed herewith as Annexure IV. The Secretarial Audit
Report is self-explanatory and does not require any specific explanation by the Board.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC):

During the year under review, Company has not made any application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016.

DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed there
under. During the financial year 2024-2025, the Company has not received any complaints on sexual
harassment. Your Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC), ICC is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment
and follows the guidelines provided in the policy. ICC has its presence at corporate office as well as at site
locations.

Status of Complaints during the financial year 2024-25:

a. Number of complaints of sexual harassment received during the year: Nil

b. Number of complaints disposed of during the year: Not Applicable

c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year and cases pending for more than ninety
days: Not Applicable

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961:

The Company is dedicated to safeguarding the rights and welfare of women employees in accordance with
the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and its subsequent amendments. During the financial
year, the Company has maintained full compliance with all statutory provisions of the Maternity Benefit
Act, 1961. The Company ensures that all eligible women employees are provided with statutory maternity
benefits, including paid maternity leave, nursing breaks, and protection against dismissal during maternity
leave, as mandated under the Act.
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VALUATION OF ASSETS:

During the financial year under review, there was no instance of one-time settlement of loans / financial
assistance taken from Banks or Financial Institutions, hence the Company was not required to carry out
valuation of its assets for the said purpose.

FAILURE TO IMPLEMENT ANY CORPORATE ACTION:
During the year under review, the Company has not failed to implement any Corporate Action.

GENERAL
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there
were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.
2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme
save and except ESOP referred to in this Report.

4. Maintenance of Cost Records and Cost Audit is not applicable for the financial year 2024-25.

5. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

6. During the year, there was no buy-back, bonus issue, reclassification or sub-division of the authorised
share capital, reduction of share capital, change in the capital structure resulting from restructuring,
change in voting rights, issue of shares / debentures / bonds / convertible securities.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the assistance and co-operation extended by the
Bankers and various State and Central Government Agencies. Your Directors also thank all the Customers
for their continuous support, Employees for their continued dedicated services, Members for their valuable
support and confidence in the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

For Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited
Place: HYDERABAD
Date : 08-12-2025 Sd/-

S. Man Mohan Rao

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00109433
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Annexure - |
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's
length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
The Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related parties
which is not at arm's length during the financial year 2024-25.
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:
a) Name(s) of the related party and . Capricorn Systems Inc., (upto 30.06.2023)
nature of relationship : Utilsoft Inc. (from 05.06.2023)
Entities in which Relative of Director
(S. Manmohan Rao) is interested

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions . Sales of Services

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements /

transactions : On going

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements : Providing Services as per the
or transactions including the value, if any : requirements of the Client.

e) Date of approval by the Board : 14.02.2024

f)  Amount paid as advances, if any : NIL

For and on behalf of the Board

For Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited
Place: HYDERABAD
Date : 08-12-2025 Sd/-

S. Man Mohan Rao

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00109433
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Annexure — Il
To the Directors Report

Information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors Report

A.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

Adequate measures have been taken to conserve energy wherever possible.

Additional investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of
energy: NIL

Impact of measures for reduction of energy consumption / energy conservation: NIL

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :
The company has an Inhouse team for upgradation / development of technologies and products.
Benefits Derived : Faster turnaround time in delivery of the projects.
Future plan of action : Enhancing the capacity & capability of the team as per growth needs of the
company.

In case of imported technology, imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year, following information may be furnished:

Technology Imported: N. A.

Year of Import: N. A.

Has technology fully absorbed areas where this has not been taken place, reasons thereof and plan of
action: N. A.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new export markets
for products and services, and export plans:

Total Foreign Exchange used and earned:

; ; 2024 - 2025 2023 -2024
S.No. Particulars of the transaction
(Rs.in Hundreds) | (Rs.in Hundreds)
1. Total Foreign Exchange earnings 1,00,096.67 87,445.96
2. Foreign Exchange outgo Nil Nil

For and on behalf of the Board
For Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited

Place: HYDERABAD
Date : 08-12-2025 Sd/-

S. Man Mohan Rao
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 00109433

40th Annual Report 2024-2025




N Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited

Annexure — Il to the Directors Report

Particulars of employees pursuant to Section 134 (3) (q) and Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March 2025

r\?- Requirements of Rule 5 (1) Details
0.

Mr. Manmohan Rao Suddala N.A.
Mrs. Lakshmi Gurram 0.09
Mrs. Vuddaraju Triveni 0.10

1 Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for
the financial year 2024 — 25

2 | The percentage increase in remuneration of each
director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive NIL
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in
the financial year 2024 — 25

Statement pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March 2025

(A) Personnel who are in receipt of remuneration aggregating not less than Rs.1,02,00,000 per annum
and employed through out of the financial year

Name Designation |Remuneration| Qualification Date of Age Last
& Nature of (Gross) Commencement in Employment
Duties of Years
Employment
NIL

(B) Personnel who are in receipt of remuneration aggregating not less than Rs.8,50,000 per month and
employed for part of the financial year

Name Designation |Remuneration| Qualification Date of Age Last
& Nature of (Gross) Commencement in Employment
Duties of Years
Employment
NIL

For and on behalf of the Board

For Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited
Place: HYDERABAD
Date : 08-12-2025 Sd/-

S. Man Mohan Rao

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00109433
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CERTIFICATEOF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuance of sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (LODR)

To,

The Members,

CAPRICORN SYSTEMS GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Registered Office: H. No: 1-120/B/28, Plot No: 28,

Siri Enclave Colony, Nizampet, Opp. Vignan School Back gate,
Bachupally Mandal, Hyderabad -500090

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms and disclosures received from the directors of
Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited [CIN: L52510TG1985PLC043347] having registered office at
H. No: 1-120/B/28, Plot No: 28, Siri Enclave Colony, Nizampet, Opp. Vignan School Back gate, Bachupally
Mandal, Hyderabad- 500090 Telangana (hereinafter referred as ‘Company’) produced before us by the
company for the purpose of issuing this certificate, in accordance with regulation 34(3) read with schedule
V Para-C sub clause 10(i) of Securities exchange board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
requirements) regulations, 2015 as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications including DIN (Director
Identification Number) Status at www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations furnished to
us by the company and its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company for financial year 2024-2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as director of companies by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

S.No. Name of the Director DIN Date of Appintment
1 Mr Manmohan Rao Suddhala 00109433 27/05/2004
2 Mr Kollu Venkata Srinivasa Rao 02834578 30/06/2008
3 Mrs. Lakshmi Gurram 07145515 31/03/2015
4 Mrs Vuddaraju Triveni 08267772 03/09/2021

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency
of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Aakash Agarwal S & Co.

Sd/-

Aakash Agarwal

Practicing Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad M. No.: 42866
Date: 08-12-2025 C.P.No.: 19466

UDIN : A042866G002268861
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ANNEXURE - IV
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members

CAPRICORN SYSTEMS GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED

# 1-120/B/28, Plot No. 28, Siri Enclave Colony, Nizampet,

Opp. Vignan School Back Gate, Bachupally, Hyderabad - 500090
Email id: complianceofficer@capricornsys-global.com

CIN: L52510TG1985PLC043347

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by CAPRICORN SYSTEMS GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED (hereinafter
called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, forms and returns filed and other records and
minutes as maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report thatin my
opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, forms and returns filed except minute’s books and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made there under and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956 which are still in force, if any;

(2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed under that Act;

(4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings, if any;

(5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
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C.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 - Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on 28th October, 2014 —Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008 — Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 — Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and disclosure requirements)
Regulations, 2015

Other Laws specifically applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the
management, such as;

(@) Information Technology Act, 2000;

(b) The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
(c) Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

(d) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

() The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

() Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017

Further as per the explanation given by the Company there are no specific acts applicable to be Company
to be reported in my Report.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. *As per Regulation 15 (2) to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the provisions of regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not
apply in respect of a listed entity whose paid up equity share capital does not exceed Rs.10 crores and
net worth does not exceed Rs.25 crores as on March 31, 2025 to the extent that they are addition to the
requirements specified under the Companies Act, 2013.
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, etc. mentioned above.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.
i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India to the extent notified

| further report that:

- The Board of Directors/ committees of company comprises of only 1 Executive (Managing Director)
and 3 Non-Executive Directors

- Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting

- Company has provided minutes for financial year 2024-2025.
| further report that:

- Nodirector is being considered to retire by rotation;
- 39,33,500 shares are in dematerialize form;

there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| report further that, during the audit period, there were no specific events/actions in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

For Aakash Agarwal S & Co.
Aakash Agarwal

Practising Company Secretary
M. No. 42866

C.P.No. 19466

UDIN : A042866G00226886 1

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 08-12-2025

*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as' Annexure A' and forms an integral
part of this report.
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“ANNEXURE A”

To,

The Members

CAPRICORN SYSTEMS GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(L52510TG1985PLC043347)

# 1-120/B/28, Plot No. 28, Siri Enclave Colony, Nizampet,

Opp. Vignan School Back Gate, Bachupally, Hyderabad - 500090

| report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. Ihave followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and
practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. lhave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the company.

4. Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Aakash Agarwal S & Co.
Aakash Agarwal

Practising Company Secretary
M. No. 42866

C.P.No. 19466

UDIN : A042866G002268861

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 08-12-2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS:
company is engaged in the business of software development, providing Business Process Out
sourcing,consultancy services in the fields of software and allied services.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:
The operations of the company during the year has been consistent with the performance in the immediately
preceding years

FINANCIAL REVIEW:
The Company has achieved a total turnover of Rs.100.81 Lakhs and Loss of Rs.91.11 Lakhs. The paid-up
share capital as at 31st March 2025 amounts to Rs.39960.00 (in hundreds).

OPPORTUNITIES:

The primary market for the services rendered by the company is United States of America. A moderate
grouwn is expected in the ensuring year. With a proven track record of delivering services as per the terms
agreed with the customers, is confident of identifying the new areas of business with the existing customers
and also in new markets.

THREATS:

Intense competition from larger peers, foreign exchange volatility and regulatory uncertainties.
SEGMENT-WISE/PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE:

The Company operates only in providing software services. Even though the revenue increased, the company
faced with losses due to high expenses.

CHALLENGES:

Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited (CSGSL) encounters normal market competition from other
similar companies. One of the major challenges being faced by the company is attracting and retaining the
competent personnel for the operations of the company in the face of the increased demand for the trained
personnel in the software market in general. Further one of the main challenges would be to optimize the
cost of operations in the face of the pressure on the margin in the highly matured markets the company
operates.

OUTLOOK:
With improved spend of the companies on the software services and with the industry expected growth at
a moderate rate and CSGSL is targeting a growth rate of around 12% for the current year.

RISKS AND CONCERNS:

The domestic and international economic environment directly influences the spending patterns of the
industry on the Information Technology. And also the margins of the companies are affected by any changes
in the government regulations like taxation and also the increased competition from other countries. The
management was not identified any risk which threaten the existence or going concern nature of the
company.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROLS:

CSGSL has a proper and adequate system of internal control to ensure that all the assets are safeguarded
and protected against loss or misuse or disposition and the transactions are authorized, recorded and
reported correctly. The internal control systems are supplemented by management review. The internal
control system is designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable and also maintaining
accountability of assets.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

Throughout the year, the total revenue reached Rs. 100.81 lakh, while the net loss amounted to Rs. 91.12
lakh, stemming from inadequate operational performance.
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HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

CSGSL has 6 employees at the end of the year, from 5 at the beginning of the year. CSGSL recognizes the
contributions of its people in creating a company, which ranks as one of the best facilities with highly skilled
people.

CGSGL provides continuous learning and personal development programs by conducting training and
evaluation of its personnel. Industrial relations have been very cordial in the organization during the year.
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

0)

(ii)
(i)
)
V)
(vi)

(vii)

Debtors Turnover: Not Applicable

Inventory Turnover: Not Applicable

Interest Coverage Ratio: Not Applicable

Current Ratio: Not Applicable

Debt Equity Ratio: Not Applicable

Operating Profit Margin (%): The Operating Profit Margin deteriorated significantly in FY 2025 due
to a sharp increase in losses of Rs.908.11 Lakh despite higher revenue of Rs.100.81 Lakh compared
to FY 2024.

Net Profit Margin (%): The Net Profit Margin dropped a lot in 2025 because the loss increased to
Rs.91.11 Lakh even though the revenue went up to Rs.100.81, compared to a smaller loss of
Rs.15.10 on Rs.82.97 Lakh revenue in 2024.

RETURN ON NET WORTH: The Company’s net worth decreased to Rs.2,76.09 Lakh in FY 25 from
Rs.367.21 Lakh in FY 24, with a change in Return on Net Worth primarily due to increased operational
losses and reduced profitability during the year.
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

A.

Details of the ensuing Annual General Meeting
Date Day Time Venue
30-09-2025 Tuesday 10.30 AM Through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other

Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)

B. Financial Calendar: 1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025
1st Quarterly Half Yearly 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
August 2024 November 2024 February 2025 May 2025
C. Date of Book Closure:
25th December, 2025 to 31st December, 2025 (both days inclusive).
D. Market Price Date: High/Low during each month in last financial year (2024 - 2025)
(In Rupees)
Period The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (Mumbai)
High Low

April 2024 10.93 9.88
May 2024 15.24 8.80
June 2024 15.35 13.04
July 2024 12.39 10.11
August 2024 17.35 10.11
September 2024 15.80 13.60
October 2024 17.36 16.35
November 2024 17.36 17.36
December 2024 17.32 14.91
January 2025 15.50 9.71
February 2025 16.23 11.02
March 2025 16.23 16.23

G. Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To
The Members of
Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s.CAPRICORN SYSTEMS GLOBAL SOLUTIONS
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet, profit and loss account statement(Including other
comprehensive Income) the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow as at March 31, 2025,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss, total comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equityand cash flow statement for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the code of ethics.We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As per the management the company is still a going concern entity because it is in process of identifying new
customers to expand the business of the company.

Instead of the above factor there is no uncertainty on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. The
company has prepared its standalone financial statements on a going concern basis.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the management Discussion and analysis, boards report including
annexures to bord report, business responsibility report, corporate governance and shareholders information,
standalone financial statements and the auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the standalone financial statements
The Company's board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position

40th Annual Report 2024-2025 m:




N Cpricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited
and financial performance(including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity)of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting
standards(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the companies(Accounts) Rules,2014
and the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists,we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The provisions of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 we give in Annexure-A, A
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

2. (A)As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record
by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements; and

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us;

(@) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;
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(b)

(c)

(d)
(i)

(i)

(iii)

(e)

()

(C)

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses; and

There were no amounts which were required to transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the provisions of
section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company
with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 as amended, on the use of accounting software (Tally ERP-9)used by the company for maintaining
of its books of accounts, we report as follows.

Based on our examination, the Company has used a tool for maintaining its books of account which have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. However, the audit trail facility has been operated part of the
year for transactions recorded in the accounting tool/software. In the absence of an independent service
auditor’s report, we are unable to comment as to whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature
being tampered with.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16) of the Act, in our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

for SNMR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 014168S

Place: Hyderabad. CA Satyanarayana .N
Date: 29-05-2025 Partner

Membership No. 230621
UDIN : 25230621BMICYQ1969
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0)

(B)
()

(©)

(@)
@)

(ii)

()

(iii)

()

(©)

Annexure 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Report on the Audit of Financial Statements)
(Referred to in our report of even date)

(@)
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant & Equipment;

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets;

The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification
of all the property, plant and equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company is having
immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee) and the title deeds of all the immovable properties are held on
the name of the company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

According to the information and explanations given to usand on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(a)The Company is in the business of providing software services and does not have any physical
inventories. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company does not have working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions during the financial year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the investments made by the Company is not prejudicial to the Company's interest.
The Company has not provided guarantees or security and has not granted loans and advances in the
nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties and hence not
commented upon.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) to
3(iii)(f) of the Order isnot applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
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)

U

(Vi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of Section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are
interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities
given have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has not accepted any depositsor amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not covered under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, where the maintenance of
cost records has been specified by the Central GovernmentAccordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable.

(vi) (@) The Companyis regularin depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including

Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of custom,
and duty of excise, cess andother statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, cess and
other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end 31-03-25, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the Company does not have any dispute amounts pending with forums
during the financial year.

(vii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of

(ix)
@)

(b)
(©)
(d)
)

(x)
@)

(b)

account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon toany lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or anygovernment authority.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to report
on clause (ix) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence; the requirement to report on clause (ix) (d)
of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(e) & (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised
any money during the year by way of initial public offer/further public offer (including debt instruments)
hence, reporting underclause 3(x)(a) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of theOrder is not applicable to the Company.
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(xi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year hence the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) to (c) is not applicable to the
company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the order
arenot applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosedin the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) (@) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

(xvi)
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank oflndia Act, 1934.Accordingly, therequirement to report on clause (xvi) (a), (b)of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India.Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) (c)of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(c) The Company does not have more than one CIC as part of the Company, hence, the requirement
to report on clause3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xvii)The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report onClause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in notes to the financial statements, ageing and expected
datesof realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financialstatements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of theevidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any materialuncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at thedate of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
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as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is basedon the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilitiesfalling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and whenthey fall due.

(xx) (@) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
amount as at the end of the previous financial year, to a Special account within a period of 30 days from the
end of the said financial year in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year. In respect of ongoing projects, the
Company has not transferred the unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the Balance
Sheet date out of the amounts that was required to be spent during the year, to a Special Account in
compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act till the date of our report since
the time period for such transfer i.e. 30 days from the end of the financial year has not elapsed till the date
of our report. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

for SNMR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 014168S
Place: Hyderabad. CA Satyanarayana .N
Date: 29-05-2025 Partner

Membership No. 230621
UDIN : 25230621BMICYQ1969
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ANNEXURE B
To the Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

(Referred to in paragraph 2 A (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report to the Members of Capricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Capricorn Systems Global Solutions
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internalcontrol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation, and maintenance of adequate internal financialcontrols that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence tocompany's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
andcompleteness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on ouraudit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over FinancialReporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls systemover financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting includedobtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weaknessexists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on theassessed risk. Theprocedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatements of thefinancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on theCompany's internal financial controls system over financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regardingthe reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generallyaccepted accounting principles. Acompany's internal financial controls
over financial reporting includes those policies andprocedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactionsand dispositions of the assets of the
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company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transaction are recorded as necessaryto permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
andexpenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of theCompany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisitions, use, ordisposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not to be detected. Also,projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk thatthe internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that thedegree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to usthe company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reportingand such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on
theinternal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internalcontrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for SNMR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 014168S
Place: Hyderabad. CA Satyanarayana .N
Date: 29-05-2025 Partner

Membership No. 230621
UDIN : 25230621BMICYQ1969
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(In Indian Rs. in Hundreds)

Notes 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
A ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets :
Property Investment 6 16,425.00 16,425.00
Property, plant and equipment 6 6,155.92 6,103.10
Capital work-in-progress 6 83,500.00 83,500.00
Other Intangible Assets 6 2,00,000.00 2,00,000.00
Financial Assets :
Investments - -
Loans 4 - -
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5 662.49 932.49
Other Non-current Assets - 1,471.00 1,471.00
Sub Total - Non-Current Assets 3,08,214.41 3,08,431.59
2 Current Assets :
Inventories - - -
Investments - - -
Trade Receivables 7 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 7 398.20 398.20
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents above 7 18,455.59 22,003.93
Other Current Assets 6 4,842.33 42,721.57
Sub Total - Current Assets 23,696.73 65,123.70
TOTAL ASSETS 3,31,910.53 3,73,555.29
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
Equity Share Capital 1 3,99,600.00 3,99,600.00
Other Equity 2 (1,23,50,139) (32,389.00)
Total Equity 2,76,098.61 3,67,211.00
2 Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Provisions 5 -
Sub Total - Non-Current Liabilities -
3 Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities :
Borrowings - -
Trade Payables 3 -
Other Current Liabilities 4 55,811.92 6,344.29
Provisions 5 - -
Sub Total - Current Liabilities 55,811.92 6,344.29
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,31,910.53 3,73,555.29
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For SNMR & Associates
Firm’s Reg. No.: 014168S Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants S MAN MOHAN RAO K.V. SRINIVASA RAO
Sd/- Director Director
CA Satyanarayana .N DIN: 00109433 DIN: 02834578
Partner
Membership No.: 230621 Sd/- Sd/-
UDIN : 25230621BMICYQ1969 PM PADMAJA D MADHAV RAO

Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AHGPD3053P

2: 1

Place
Date

: Hyderabad
: 29 May 2025

Company Secretary
PAN : AWCPP4761B
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(In Indian Rs. in Hundreds)

Notes 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
1. Income
a. Sales from Operations 8 1,00,809.57 82,970.65
b.Other Operating Income - -
1. Total Income from Operations (net) (1.a. + 1.b) 1,00,809.57 82,970.65
2. Expenses
a) Employee benefits expense 10 80,730.66 72,756.96
b) Depreciation and amortisation expense 6 245.22 80.75
c) Other expenses 11 1,10,644.86 26,011.79
Total Expenses [sum of (a) to (c)] 1,91,620.74 98,849.50
3. Profit from operations before other income, (90,811.17) (15,878.85)
finance costs and exceptional items (1-2)
4. Other Income 9 - 912.91
5. Profit from ordinary activities before finance
costs and exceptional items (3+4) (90,811.17) (14,965.94)
6. Finance costs - -
7  Profit from ordinary activities after finance costs
but before exceptional items (5-6) (90,811.17) (14,965.94)
Exceptional Items - net credit (charge) - -
. Profit from Ordinary Activities Before Tax (7+8) (90,811.17) (14,965.94)
10. Tax Expense
Current Tax -
Income Tax paid for earlier years -
Deffered Tax 270.01 (245.50)
11. Net Profit from Ordinary Activities After Tax (9-10) (91,081.18) (14,720.44)
12. Extraordinary items - -
13. Net Profit for the period (11+12) (91,081.18) (14,720.44)
14. Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) -
net credit / (charge) (31.22) (380.50)
15. Total Comprehensive Income (13+14) (91,112.40) (15,100.94)
16. Earning Per Share (EPS) before extraordinary
items (of Re.10/- each) (not annualised) :
a. Basic - Rs. (2.279) (0.368)
b) Diluted - Rs. (2.279) (0.368)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For SNMR & Associates
Firm’s Reg. No.: 014168S Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants S MAN MOHAN RAO K.V. SRINIVASA RAO
Sd/- Director Director

CA Satyanarayana .N
Partner
Membership No.: 230621

UDIN : 25230621BMICYQ1969

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 29 May 2025

DIN: 00109433

Sd/-
PM PADMAJA

Company Secretary
PAN : AWCPP4761B

DIN: 02834578

Sd/-
D MADHAV RAO

Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AHGPD3053P
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- per Share)

(In Indian Rs. in Hundreds)

Particulars Number of Shares Amount
Balance as on 1st April, 2024 39,96,000 3,99,600.00
Issued during the year - -
Balance as on 31st March, 2025 39,96,000 3,99,600.00
Balance as on 1st April, 2023 39,96,000 3,99,600.00
Issued during the year - -
Balance as on 31st March, 2024 39,96,000 3,99,600.00

B. Other Equity (Attributable to owners of the company)

(In Indian Rupees in Hundreds)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus
Total
General Reserve | Retained Earnings
Opening Balance as on 01.04.2024 66,340.06 (98,729.06) (32,388.99)
Add : Transfer to General Reserve - -
Add : Profit during the year (91,081.17) (91,081.17)
Add : Other Comprehensive Income (31.22) (31.22)

Closing Balance as on 31.03.2025 66,340.06 (1,89,841.45) (1,23,501.39)
Opening Balance as on 01.04.2023 66,340.06 (83,628.12) (17,288.06)
Add : Transfer to General Reserve - -
Add : Profit during the year (14,720.44) (14,720.43)
Add : Other Comprehensive Income (380.50) (380.50)
Closing Balance as on 31.03.2024 66,340.06 (987290.06) (32388.99)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For SNMR & Associates

Firm’s Reg. No.: 014168S Sd/- Sd/-

Chartered Accountants S MAN MOHAN RAO K.V. SRINIVASA RAO

Sd/- Director Director
CA Satyanarayana .N DIN: 00109433 DIN : 02834578

Partner
Membership No.: 230621

UDIN : 25230621BMICYQ1969

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 29 May 2025

Sd/-
PM PADMAJA

Company Secretary
PAN :AWCPP4761B

Sd/-
D MADHAV RAO

Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AHGPD3053P
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2025

As at As at

PARTICULARS 31st March, 2025(31st March, 2024

1. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit before extrordinary items and tax (90,811.17) (14,965.94)
Add : Adjustments for
Depreciation 245.22 80.75
Loss on FA Scrapped / Discontinued - 1,726.43
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) (31.22) (380.50)
Operating Profit before working capital changes (90,597.17) (13,539.26)
Increase / Decrease in Working Capital
(Increase) / Decrease in Sundry Debtors - 4,905.00
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets 38,149.65 5,703.07
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 49,467.63 (25,565.59)
Cash Generated / Used in Operations 87,616.88 (14,957.52)
Income Tax Paid (Net of Refunds) (270.01) 245.50
Less : Taxes Paid (Income Tax) (270.01) 245.50
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities - | (3,250.30) (28,251.28)

ll. CashFrom Investing Activities :
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets -
Purchase of Fixed Assets (298.04) (1,373.80)

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities - Il (298.04) (1,373.80)
lll. Cash from Financing Activities
Increase in Short Term Borrowings 0.00 0.00
Financial Charges 0.00 0.00
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities - lll 0.00 0.00
Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalent (I+l1+11l) (3,548.34) (29,625.08)
Reconciliation :
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 22,402.13 52,027.21
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 18,853.79 22,402.13
Increase in Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year (3,548.34) (29,625.08)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For SNMR & Associates
Firm’s Reg. No.: 014168S Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants S MAN MOHAN RAO K.V. SRINIVASA RAO
Sd/- Director Director
CA Satyanarayana .N DIN : 00109433 DIN : 02834578
Partner
Membership No.: 230621 Sd/- Sd/-
UDIN : 25230621BMICYQ1969 PM PADMAJA D MADHAV RAO
Place : Hyderabad Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date 1 29 May 2025 PAN : AWCPP4761B PAN : AHGPD3053P
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Note 1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Corporate Information

Overview and Significant Accounting policies: CAPRICORN SYSTEMS GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED is
a limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on
16/03/1985 and registered with register of Companies, Hyderabad with CIN No. L52510TG1985PC043347.
The company engages in the business of Information Technology enabled services other related activities.The
Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange.

Significant Accounting policies:

Statement of compliance

Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013Accordingly, the Company has prepared
these Standalone Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended 31 March 2025 and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended as on that date, and
accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as 'Standalone Financial
Statements' or 'financial statements').These financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29th May 2025.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The separate financial statements of the company are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.Exceptions if any are given with suitable disclosure in the Financial statements
wherever we come across.

The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies(Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accountingstandard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a changein theaccounting policy
hitherto in use.

Use of estimate

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

This note provides an overview of the areas where there is a higher degree of judgment or complexity.
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together
with information about the basis of calculation.

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are
as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the
financial statements.

(a) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Software Development is recognized based on Software Developed and billed asper the
terms of specific contracts. Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which
the services are rendered. Revenue is recognised based on actual service provided vis-a-vis proportion of
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the total services to be provided at the end of the year. Income from dividend if any, isaccounted on cash
basis.

(b) Interest income
Interestincome is recognized on a time proportion basis considering the amount outstandingand the applicable
interest rate. Interest income is included under the head "other income" in thestatement of profit and loss.

(c) Income taxes:

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. The Company's current tax is calculated
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in
India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future
income tax liability.

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

(d) Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

(e) Employee benefits:
Employee benefits include salaries, wages, contribution to provident fund, gratuity, leave encashment towards
un-availed leave and other terminal benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in
the balance sheet.

Post-employment benefits:

Defined contribution plan Employee Benefit under defined contribution plans comprises of Contributory
provident fund, Post Retirement benefit scheme, Employee pension scheme, composite social security
scheme etc. is recognized based on the undiscounted amount of obligations of the Company to contribute
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to the plan.The same is paid to a fund administered by Central Government.Contributions are charged to
the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which they accrue.

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefit comprises of leave encashment towards un-availed leave and compensated
absences, these are recognized based on the present value of defined obligation, which is computed using
the projected unit credit method, carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. These are accounted
either as current employee cost or included in cost of assets as permitted in the period in which they occur.

(f) Property, plant and equipment:

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any tradediscounts and
rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequentlyrecoverable from the tax authorities),
any directly attributable expenditure on making theasset ready for its intended use, including relevant
borrowing costs for qualifying assets andany expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred
after the property, plant andequipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged tothe Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the costs are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply oradministrative
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciationand accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation and useful life
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, lessits residual
values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1l to the
Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of assets (otherthan freehold land and
properties under construction).

Derecognition

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expectedto arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirementof an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the salesproceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(g) Intangible assets:

Useful life and amortisation Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the useful lives of the asset from the date of capitalisation. Intangible assets withindefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulatedimpairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination viz. Goodwill, Patents, Copyrights and Brands that
do not have definite useful life are not amortised. If events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired, they are tested for impairment.

Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expectedfrom use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset aredetermined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount The Company has elected to continue with
carrying value of all its intangible assets recognised ason transition date, measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemedcost as of transition date.

(h) Impairment

At the end of each reporting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangibleand intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets havesuffered an impairment loss. If
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any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of theasset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statementof
Profit and Loss.

(i) Work in progress

Particulars As at 31st,March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Capital Work-in-Progress (Rupees in hundreds) 83,500.00 83,500.00

The capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as
follows :

Particulars Amount in capital-work-in progress for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Years
Projects in progress (Rupees in Lakhs) - - - 83,500.00

Capital Work-in-Progress includes advances for capital items, capital items under erection and pre- operative
expenses pending allocation on the assets to be commissioned.

Completion schedule : Whose completion is over due or has exceeded its cost compared to original plan. No
such CWIP for the current reporting period - NIL (previous reporting period).

(j) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.

(k) Foreign exchange translation

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency ofthe primary
economic environment in which it operates. Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchangerates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting fromthe settlement of such transactions are generally recognised in profit or loss. Monetarybalances
arising from the transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated tofunctional currency using the
exchange rate as on the reporting date. Any gains or loss onsuch translation, are generally recognised in
profit or loss. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year in which they arise.

() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes
in value.

(m) Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per shareis calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss after tax after considering the effect of
interest and other financing costs or income (net of attributable taxes) associated with dilutive potential
equity shares by the weighted average number of equity shares.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

All amounts are in Indian Rs. in hudreds, unless treated otherwise

31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2025

NOTE : 1 - SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Capital
Authorised (50,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each) 5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00

5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up.
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
(39,96,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each) 3,99,600.00 3,99,600.00
3,99,600.00 3,99,600.00
a. Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year :

Particulars 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
No. of Equity Amount | No. of Equity Amount
Shares Shares
Eauity shares of Rs.10/- each fully
paid up at the beginning of the Year 39,96,000 | 3,96,600.00 39,96,000 [ 3,96,600.00
Outstanding at the end of the year 39,96,000 | 3,96,600.00 39,96,000 | 3,96,600.00

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

- The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- each holder of
equity shares is entitled one vote per share.

- In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

- The dividend proposed if any, by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the share-
holders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in the case of interim dividend.

c. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 % shares in the company

Name of the Shareholder 31-Mar-2025 | 31-Mar-2024
No.of |%ofSharess No.of |% of Shareg
Shares held held |Shares held held

1.  S. MANMOHAN RAO 17,07,223 | 42.723% | 17,07,223 | 42.723%
2. RAJKUMAR 3,00,000 7.508% | 3,00,000 7.508%
3. SURENDERREDDY G 3,00,000 7.508% | 3,00,000 7.508%
4. SHAHKIRITM 2,95,539 7.396% | 2,95,539 7.396%
5. LAXMITWISTERS LIMITED 2,68,600 6.722% | 2,68,600 6.722%

As per the records of the company including register of share holders and other declarations received
from share holders regarding beneficial interest, the above share holding represent both legal and beneficial
interest.

40th Annual Report 2024-2025 m:




N Cpricorn Systems Global Solutions Limited

Disclosure of Equity Shares held by Promoters at the end of the reporting year:

S. March 31, 2025 % of change
No. Promoter Name No of Shares| % of Total Shares | during the year
01 | Manmohan Rao Suddhala 17,07,223 | 42.723% 0.000%
02 | Surender Reddy Garlapati 3,00,000 7.508% 0.000%
03| M/s Laxmi Twisters Limited 2,68,600 6.722% 0.000%
04 | Sarala Devi Suddala 88,064 2.204% 0.000%
05| Deepa ltha 20,098 0.503% 0.000%
Total Equity Shares held by Promoters 23,83,985 | 59.659% 0.000%
S. March 31, 2025 % of change
No. Promoter Name during the year
01 | Manmohan Rao Suddhala 17,07,223 | 42.723% 0.000%
02 | Surender Reddy Garlapati 3,00,000 7.508% 0.000%
03| M/s Laxmi Twisters Limited 2,68,600 6.722% 0.000%
04 | Sarala Devi Suddala 88,064 2.204% 0.000%
05| Deepa ltha 20,098 0.503% 0.000%
Total Equity Shares held by Promoters 23,83,985 | 59.659% 0.000%
Note : 2 Other Equity
Particulars 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
General Reserve 66,340.06 66,340.06
Profit & Loss Account:
Opening Balance (98,729.05) (83,628.12)
Add : Profit for the year 91,081.17) (14,720.44)
Add : Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) (31.22) (380.50)
(1,89,741.45) (98,729.06)
Total (1,23,501.39) (32,389.00)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

Non Current Current
31-Mar-2025 | 31-Mar-2024 | 31-Mar-2025 | 31-Mar-2024

Trade Payables

Total oustanding dues of micro and
small enterprises - - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro and small
enterprises (Refer note 33) - - - -

3 Other Liabilities
Statutory Liabilities

- For Employee Benefits - - 937.56 1,323.50
- For Gratuity Provisions - - - -
- For other Statutory Taxes - - 2,108.74 2,066.84
Advances from Customers - - 40,000.00 -
Payable against expenses 4,104.73 2,953.95
Advances from Customers - - 8,660.89 -

- - 55,811.92 6,344.29
Provisions

Provision for Income Tax - - - -
Advance Income Tax, TDS Receivaples - - -

4 Loans and Advances
a) Security Deposits :
Secured, considered good - - - -
Unsecured, considered good - - - -
Doubtful - - - -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

Non Current Current
31-Mar-2025 | 31-Mar-2024 | 31-Mar-2025 | 31-Mar-2024

b) Loans and advances to
related parties - - - -
Secured, considered good

c¢) Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, 499.95 474 .65
considered good

d) Advance Income Tax/ TDS 273.91 273.91
Receivable / Income Tax
Refunds / MAT Cr.

e) Balances with Government
Authorities (Unsecured,
considered good)

i) Input Tax Credit (GST) - - 4,068.47 8,777.63
i) Deposit with Central Excise 571.00 571.00 - -
iii) Other Deposits 900.00 900.00 - -
f) Other Loans and Advances :

(UnSecured, considered good) - - - -
Secured, considered good - - - -
Advances to Suppliers and Othefs - 29,346.54
Employee Loans - - - 3,848.84

1,471.00 1,471.00 4,842.33 42,721.57

5 Deferred Taxes (Net)
Deferred Tax Assets :
Property, Plant and Equipment 662.49 932.50
Employee benefits - -

662.49 932.50

Trade Receivables
Outstanding for a period exceeding Six Months
Other Debtors (Unsecured, considered good) - -

7 Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and cash equivalents :
CashonHand 398.20 398.20
Balance with banks on current accounts 18,455.59 22,003.93
Cheques in Hand -

18,853.79 22,402.13
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024

8 Revenue from operations

Sale of Services - Software Development (EXPORTS) 1,00,809.57 82,970.65
1,00,809.57 82,970.65
9 OTHERINCOME - 912.91
- 912.91

10 Employee Benefits expense

Salaries and Benefits 75,947.35 63,283.31
Directors Remuneration - 5,250.00

Contribution made towards :.
Provident Fund 4631.28 3,715.19

Gratuity -
Staff Welfare Expenses 152.03 508.46
80,730.66 72,756.96
11 Other Expenses
Internet Charges 623.57 449.48
Rent, Rates & Taxes 2,343.70 5,324.22
Electricity Charges 678.66 329.78
Travelling & Conveyance -66.00 -
Repairs & Maintenance 246.00 2,221.78
Professional & Consultancy Charges 18,601.32 4,935.00
Office Maintenance & Security 1,258.95 1,262.09
Listing Fee & Demat Charges 42,472.68 6,664.84
General Expenses 43,593.98 3,874.60
Payment to Auditors

Statutory Audit Fee 750.00 750.00
For Taxation Matters - 200.00
1,10,644.86 26,011.79

12 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of Tangible Assets 245.22 80.75
Amortization of Intangible Assets - -

245.22 80.75
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CAPRICORN SYSTEMS GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
CIN: L52510TG1985PLC043347
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts are in Indian Rupees in Hundreds, unless stated otherwise)

Details of Benami property held

The company does not have any proceedings that have been initiated or pending against the company
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and the rules made thereunder.

Borrowings from Banks or Financial Institutions or Other Lenders
No such borrowings exist in the company’s books of accounts as at the end of reporting period.

Borrowings from Banks or Financial Institutions on the Basis of Security of Current Assets
No such borrowings on basis of security of current assets exist in the company’s books of accounts as
at the end of reporting period.

Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company
The Title deeds of Immovable property in the books of accounts, are held in the name of company only.

Wilful Defaulter
The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender from
whom the borrowings are obtained.

Charges or Satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
periodNo creation of charges or satisfaction of charges arised during the reporting period which are
yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies.

Relationship with Struck off Companies (under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956):

There are no transactions entered into and outstanding by the Company with any struck off companies
as at reporting date.

Layers of Companies, prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017
Company does not have any Holding/Subsidiary companies as at the reporting date.

Corporate Social Responsibilty related Disclosures
CSR is not applicable to the company , as neither of company’s turnover exceeded 1000 crores nor
Networth exceeded 500 crores nor Net profit Exceeded 5 Crores During the Preceeding financial year.

Details of Crypto or Virtual Currency
The Company does not hold any investments in the form of Crypto or Virtual Currency.
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23 Related Party Disclosures: (Related Party Disclosures required as per Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS-24) on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

are as below)

There were no contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March,

2025 which were not on Arm’s Length Basis.

A Names of Related Parties and Related Party Relationship

Name of the related Parties Nature of Relationship Since
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Manmohan Rao Managing Director 27/05/2004
KV Srinivasa Rao Director 30/06/2008
G Lakshmi Women Director 31/03/2015
Triveni Vuddaraju Director 03/09/2021
Capricorn Systems Inc. (USA) Owned by relative of Managing Director -

Utilsoft Inc. (USA) Owned by relative of Managing Director -

PM Padmaja Company Secretary 14/11/2018
D Madhav Rao Chief Financial Officer 12/04/2019

B Details of Related Party Transactions

Transactions during the Reporting Period

AmountinRs.

Name of the related Party Nature of Relationship Tgarlltsu:t?;n 31 zl\g;?h’ 31 zl\gg:‘ch,
Capricorn Systems Inc. (USA)| Owned byrelative of Managing Director | Exports of Services - 22,006.11
Utilsoft Inc. (USA) Owned by relative of Managing Director | Exports of Services | 1,00,809.57 60,964.54
S. Manmohan Rao Managing Director Remuneration - 5250.00
S. Manmohan Rao Managing Director Advances (25,500.00) (4,000.00)
S. Murali Krishna Relative of Managing Director | Advances (40,000.00) -
G Lakshmi Woman Director Board Sitting Fee 720.00 720.00
Triveni Vuddaraju Director Board Sitting Fee 840.00 840.00
PM Padmaja Company Secretary Salary 3,600.00
D Madhav Rao Chief Financial Officer Salary 8,737,04

C. Balance Receivable / (Payable) as at Reporting Date

Name of the related Party Nature of Relationship Tgit:;it(i);n 31 2I\I(I);|;:h, 31 2“3;':"’
Utilsoft Inc. (USA) Owned by relative of Managing Director | Exports of Services - -
S. Manmohan Rao Managing Director Remuneration (442.00) (442.00)
S. Manmohan Rao Managing Director Advances (23,000.00) (4,000.00)
S. Murali Krishna Relative of Managing Director | Advances (40,000.00 -
G Lakshmi Director Board Sitting Fee (162.00) (144.00)
Triveni Vuddaraju Director Board Sitting Fee (189.00) (168.90)
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24 Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the
related parties (as defined under either severally or jointly with any other person):
No such transactions exist in the company’s books of accounts during the reporting period.

25

Retirement benefits:
Company’s contribution to Provident Fund charged to Profit and Loss Account, Gratuity and Leave
Encashment benefits are charged to Profit and Loss Account on the basis of actuarial valuation.

26. Earning Per Share:
S.No. Name of the related Party FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
1 Nominal value of shares (Rs.) 10 10
2 Net Profit / (Loss) for the year (Rs.) (91,081.18) (14,720.44)
3 Basic :
3a Weighted Average Number of shares outstanding
during the year 39,960.00 39,960.00
3b Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (2.279) (0.368)
4 Diluted :
4a Weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year (diluted) 39,96,000 39,96,000
4b Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (2.279) (0.368)
27 Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

28

29

30

31

32

33

The company does not have any contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments as at the reporting
date.

Derivative Instruments and Other Un-Hedged Foreign Currency Exposure
There are no derivative contracts oustanding at the close of the current reporting period.

Segment information:

The Company is engaged in “Business of software development and other IT Enabled Services”, which
in the context of Indian Accounting Standard 108 (Operating Segment) is considered as the only
business segment. Accordingly, no separate segmental information has been provided herein.

Based on the information available with the Company, there are no vendors who are registered as Micro and
Small enterprises under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" as at March 31,
2025.

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements (approved by the Competent Authority in terms
of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013): “NIL”

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: “NIL”

Additional information:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

A. Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Rupees in Hundreds) Nil Nil
B. Earnings in Foreign Exchange (Rupees in Hundreds) 1,00,096.67 87,444.96
C. CIF Value of Imports (INR) Nil Nil
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34

35

36

BSE SOP Penalty for Non compliance of Regulation 33 of SEBI :

As per Regulation 33 of SEBI, every listed entity shall submit the quarterly and year-to-date standalone
financial results to the stock exchange within 45 days from the end of each quarter.

The Company duly submitted the quarterly financial results within the prescribed time as stipulated in
the SEBI regulations. However, due to a change in the format, the financial results submitted by the
Company were not considered by the stock exchange, and it was treated as though the Company had
not submitted any financial results. Consequently, a penalty of Rs. 34,618.80 (in hundreds) was levied,
which the Company has paid in the month of July 2025.

Rounding off:

All the amounts in the Financial statements are in Indian Rupees. Depending upon the total income of
the company, amounts appearing in the Financial Statements have been rounded off to the nearest
hundreds or decimals thereof.

Previous year figures:

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform to the
CurrentReporting Period’s classification.

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through notification, amended Schedule IlI
to the Companies Act, 2013, applicable for financial period commencing from April 01, 2021. The
Company has incorporated the changes as per the said amendment in the above financial statements
and has also changed the comparative numbers wherever applicable.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For SNMR & Associates

Firm’s Reg. No.: 014168S Sd/- Sd/-

Chartered Accountants S MAN MOHAN RAO K.V. SRINIVASA RAO
Sd/- Director Director

CA Satyanarayana .N DIN: 00109433 DIN : 02834578

Partner

Membership No.: 230621 Sd/- Sd/-

UDIN : 25230621BMICYQ1969 PM PADMAJA D MADHAV RAO

Place : Hyderabad Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Date : 29 May 2025 PAN : AWCPP4761B PAN : AHGPD3053P
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CIN: L52510TG1985PLC043347
Additional Disclosures to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

1. Trade payables ageing schedule

CAPRICORN SYSTEMS GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED

(Amount in Hundred, INR.)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
S.No. Particulars 9 9P pay Total
<1 years 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Company has no trade
1 | Others - - - - |payables outstanding
as on reporting date
2. Trade receivables ageing schedule (Amount in Hundred, INR.)
. Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
S.No. Particulars Total
< 6 months | 6months-1year| 1-2 years | 2-3 years | > 3 years
Company has no
1 UndISpUted Trade - - - - - trade payables
receivables - outstanding as
considered good on reporting date
3. Ratios as per the Financial Statements
S. Ratio Formula 2024- | 2023- | %of Explanation if
No. 2025 2024 |Change >25% change
(a) | Current Ratio Current Assets/ Current The decline is primarily
Liabilities 0.42 10.26 [95.86%) | due to an increase in
current liabilities on
account of advances
received from customers,
which are considered as
short-term obligations until
related services are
delivered. Adjuested for
such advances, the ratio
would be 1.50
(b) | Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt/ Shareholder’s Company has
Equity NA NA - | no debt.
(c) | Debt Service Coverage Earnings Available for NA NA - | Company has
Ratio Debt Service/ Debt Service no debt.
(d) | Return on Equity Ratio (Net profit after taxes- -32.99% | -4.26% | -675% | Drop in revenues and the
(in %) preference dividend)/Equity fixed overheads are
shareholders Fund intact, resulting into
increased loss compared
to previous year
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(in %)

and taxes / Capital Employed

S. Ratio Formula 2024- | 2023- | %of Explanation if
No. 2025 2024 |Change >25% change
(e) | Inventory turnover ratio (Cost of Goods Sold or NA NA - | Company is Service
Sales) / Average inventory oriented
(f) | Trade Receivables turnover| Net credit Sales / Average NA NA - | No Trade Receivables
ratio Accounts Receivables in previous reporting
period
(g) | Trade payables turnover ratio] Net credit purchases / NA NA - | Company is Service
Average Trade payables oriented
(h) | Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales / Average 7.56 1.37 452% | Drop in revenues and the
Working Capital fixed overheads are
intact, resulting into
increased loss compared
to previous year
(i) | Net Profit ratio (in %) Net profit / Net Sales -90.35% [-18.84% | -380% | Drop in revenues and the
fixed overheads are
intact, resulting into
increased loss compared
to previous year
(j) | Return on Capital employed | Earnings before interest -32.89% | -4.32% | -661% | Drop in revenues and the

fixed overheads are
intact, resulting into
increased loss compared
to previous year
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PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19 (3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CAPRICORN SYSTEMS GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
# 1-120/B/28, Plot No. 28, Siri Enclave Colony, Nizampet, Opp. Vignan School Back Gate,

Bachupally, Hyderabad - 500090 CIN: L52510TG1985PLC043347
Email id: complianceofficer@capricornsys-global.com Website: www.capricornsys-global.com

Name (s) of the Member (s)
Registered Address

Email ID

Folio No. / Client ID

DPID

I / We being the member (s) of shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint

1. Name
Address
E-mail ID

Signature or failing him

2. Name
Address
E-mail ID

Signature or failing him

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote ( on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 40th Annual General Meeting
of the company, to be held on Monday, the 30th September, 2025 at 10.30 A.M, through video conferencing (VC) or
other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members / Proxy can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through
VC/OAVM at the Registered Office and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below:

VOTE
For Against

Sl.No. Resolution(s)

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for
the period ended 31st March, 2025 together with the reports of
Directors and Auditors thereon

* Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form.Affix Revenue Stamps
Affix

Signed this day of 20 Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder Signature of the shareholder
across Revenue Stamp
Note: 1)  This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2)  The proxy need not be a member of the company
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